
  MOUND CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
May 22, 2018  

 
The City Council of the City of Mound, Hennepin County, Minnesota, met in regular session on 
Tuesday, May 22, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the council chambers of the Centennial Building. 
 
Members present: Mayor Mark Wegscheid, Council members Kelli Gillispie, Jeff Bergquist, and 
Ray Salazar, Jennifer Peterson 
 
Members absent:  None. 
 
Others present:  City Manager Eric Hoversten, Community Development Director Sarah Smith, 
City Attorney Troy Gilchrist, Director of Finance and Administrative Services Catherine 
Pausche, LMCD Representative Jay Green, Jason Zattler, Michelle Olson, Christine Valerius, 
Rita Pederson, Michael Edwards, Candice Anderson, Holly Trumann, Jim Kruse, Tyler Franck, 
Skip Johnson, Fred Waldoch, Tollet Kohrman, Erin Moss, Patrick Seibert, Jane Anderson, 
Cindy and Roger Stephenson, Kathy Rothenberger, Pam Dahm 
 
Consent agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in 
nature by the Council. There will be no separate discussion on these items unless a 
Councilmember or citizen so requests, in which event it will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered in normal sequence. 
 
1.  Open meeting  
Mayor Wegscheid called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance  
 
3.  Approve Agenda, with any amendments  
Hoversten noted additional info added for Agenda Item 10A to be included as pages 981.1 - 
981.11.  In addition, Hoversten requested the addition of a new item 10.1 Discussion and action 
on a resolution approving amendment to the CBD Parking Program Shared Parking Agreement, 
in the City of Mound, MN 55364, as pages 981.12 - 981.28. 
 
MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Bergquist, to approve the agenda as amended.  All 
voted in favor.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consent Agenda 

MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Peterson, to approve the consent agenda.  Upon roll 
call vote, all voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

 
A. Approve payment of claims in the amount of $265,339.80. 

 
B. RESOLUTION NO. 18-47:  RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGES TO THE MOUND 

PARKING MAP 
 

C. Approve Pay Request #2 and final in the amount of $5,571.75 to Geislinger and Sons for 
2018 Street, Utility and Retaining Wall Improvements - Westedge Boulevard Intersection 
Utility Relocation Project PW-18-01 
 

D.  RESOLUTION NO. 18-48:  RESOLUTION OF SPONSORSHIP AS RELATED TO THE        
      SOUTHWEST TRAILS SNOWMOBILE ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 
 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 22, 2018 

 

5.  Comments and suggestions from citizens present on any item not on the agenda. 
 
Jim Cruz, 2830 Pine Road, along with Mike Edwards 2805 Halstead Lane, and Fred Waldock 
2811 Halstead Lane, all present to express concerns with the CR44/Westedge Blvd project 
traffic detour on Halstead Lane.   
 
Cruz said they are mainly concerned with pedestrian and residential safety due to increased 
traffic on Halstead Lane and recommended a reduced speed limit of 20 MPH because people 
are not familiar with the curves, particularly the large commercial traffic and questions whether 
they are adhering to weight restrictions.   
 
Hoversten said Westedge will be completed in 2018 with CR 44 continuing into 2019.  Cruz 
asked for further analysis and consideration.  Cruz said Halstead Lane owners do not want to 
be responsible for the damage to the road and any necessary resurfacing.  Edwards said he 
tried to turn around two trucks today but the Police Officer Ryan said the City said it was okay.  
Hoversten said they are already in contact with MCES about rerouting the tankage trucks either 
through the construction or to another site.  
 
Mayor Wegscheid said the typical process is for Staff to investigate the concerns and put the 
issue on a future agenda for discussion.  Wegscheid said the three speakers will be notified 
when that will take place.    
 
6.  Action to approve minutes from the May 8, 2018 regular meeting 

MOTION made by Salazar, seconded by Gillispie, to approve the minutes from the May 8, 2018 
regular meeting.  The following voted in favor:  Wegscheid, Gillispie, Salazar and Bergquist.  
The following voted against:  none.  The following abstained:  Peterson.  Motion carried. 

 
7.  Dave Hutchinson, 2018 Candidate for Hennepin County Sheriff providing comments to 
citizens and the Council regarding his candidacy    
Not present in the audience at 7:10 pm so Council moved to the next item. 
  
8.  Jay Green, City Representative to the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, and 
Board President providing a periodic update and discussion 2019 Preliminary Budget 
forecast 
Jay Green, rep to LMCD and Board Chair, said he has a Power Point presentation to update the 
City on the 2018 and 2019 budget and priorities.  Green said the budget format has changed 
somewhat and noted that the Save the Lake funds are now included in the main budget to 
increase transparency and emphasis.  Green noted the loss in DNR and MCWD funding has 
caused the AIS inspections to be eliminated.   Other priorities include recodification and 
improved communications and public education.  Green provided handouts and said the new 
updated Code/Rule Book will address electroshock drowning risks, the website has been 
updated to increase the number of interagency resource links, social media sites have been 
added and staff and board members will be present at community events to educate and spread 
good will.  Green said operating costs and fee structures continue to be evaluated in light of 
funding cuts.  Green noted the largest expense of harvesting is trucking and they continue to 
explore efficiencies like having a runner so the slow harvester does not have to go back and 
forth and allowing homeowners and other agencies to use the truck for their weeds in order to 
create cost share opportunities and maximize the loads.   
 
Green said the Hennepin County Water Patrol is responsible for four bodies of water in county.  
Save the Lake funds are used to ensure there is one dedicated deputy on Lake Minnetonka at 
all times.  Funds are used to put solar lights on the buoys and to sponsor a boater safety course 
on Monday, June 18th from 7:00 am to 6:00 pm that targets 12 - 17 year olds and will take place 
at the Westonka Community Education Center.   



Mound City Council Minutes – May 22, 2018 

 

Green noted the U of M is conducting a research study in St. Albans Bay to see if reproduction 
of zebra mussels can be controlled by studying the larve, called velligers.    
 
Green said the 2019 budget is $567,200, a 5.19% increase, with Mound's share at $22,231, or 
2.7%.  Gillispie about the AIS expenses and Green said there are high fixed costs involved, like 
the certified trucking that has to be used.  Gillispie asked why there was still a $45K increase 
when there are savings in things like admin and legal.  Green said the increase is due to 
including the Save the Lakes fund for the first time.  Green said he will be taking issue for 
having to fundraise to supplement the County's team of 8 licensed deputies as sufficient 
coverage for Lake Minnetonka is a county responsibility.   
 
Green asked the Council for feedback on what they would like to see with AIS management.  
Wegscheid said he wished he had the answer as there does not seem to be a clear one and he 
cautions doing things for the sake of it without knowing whether or not it is effective.  Green said 
it is difficult as some are against chemical treatment and prefer the harvesting. 
 
Wegscheid said he appreciates all the LMCD does on a limited budget. 
 
 
9.  City Manager Eric Hoversten and Mr. F. "Skip" Johnson requesting discussion and 
action on a resolution of support from the City of Mound for the efforts of the Island Park 
Village Hall Revitalization Organization 
Skip Johnson, 3018 Island View Drive, said he is a member of the Island Park Village Hall 
Preservation Society which has 6 primary members.  Johnson said the group is in the process 
of completing the Articles of Incorporation and the 501c-3 designation.  In addition, they are 
working on the application for historical registry and learning much about what is involved and 
what grant money is out there.  Johnson said the building fits the main criteria becaise it is 
structurally sound and will be used for a similar/same purpose as when built.  Johnson said the 
Marvin historical expert suggested just replacing the glass and the roof pricing/method is yet to 
be determined.  Johnson said the business plan has been started that will address restoration 
and how it will be operated in the future.  Johnson requested approval of the resolution.  
Hoversten said a pseudo development agreement may be the instrument to manage 
expectations and transfer of control.   
 
Johnson noted that they are receiving positive support and enthusiasm and the group is excited 
that the building is now empty.   
 
Mayor Wegscheid congratulated the group on their progress.   
 
MOTION by Salazar, seconded by Gillispie, to approve the following resolution.  All voted in 
favor.  Motion carried. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-49:  RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FROM THE CITY OF MOUND FOR 
THE EFFORTS OF THE ISLAND PARK VILLAGE HALL REVITALIZATION ORGANIZATION 
 
10.  Planning Commission Recommendations 
 
       A.      Consideration/action - short term rental home use and need for new regulations  
 
Smith provided background and said the Planning Commission held a listening session at their 
May 1st meeting  where members of the public on all sides of the issue were present.  Smith 
said Orono does not allow with the exemption for owner occupied and that Minnetrista acted to 
prohibit it with a grace period through 2018.  Smith said Woodland and Deephaven have not 
regulated or addressed short term rentals.  Smith said the two letters that were received after 
packet production have been provided as additional information as well as a petition that was 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 22, 2018 

 
submitted at the Planning Commission meeting.  Smith said cities vary greatly in how they are 
managing/responding to short term rentals.  Tonka Bay allows it with license but no inspection.  
Others have many variables for parking requirements, owner occupied, etc.   
 
Smith said whether the decision is to allow or prohibit, amendments to the City Code are 
necessary and that lawful non-conforming language will need to be added for existing operators.  
Smith said last fall Staff estimated there were 20 – 21 short term rentals in Mound, some hosted 
and some unhosted. Smith said the Planning Commission had representation of all sides, with 
some saying a commercial activity does not belong in a residential neighborhood while others 
said it is a valuable service that is in demand. Some said Mound’s small lots tend to compound 
problems.  Smith said some have done a great job managing it and others have had problem 
renters.   
 
Smith said the Planning Commission voted 4 to 3 to recommend consideration of regulation to 
allow short term rentals with conditions that also provide for enforcement options.  Smith said 
the primary concern is life safety and licensure and that the fees should be adequate to cover 
expense.   
 
Mayor Wegscheid said if there are no questions from Council, members of the audience are 
invited to speak, with the ultimate objective to give Staff the direction on what ordinance to 
prepare – whether to allow or prohibit.  Peterson clarified short term is for 30 days or less.   
 
Jane Anderson, 5060 Edgewater Drive, has a short term rental next door to her.  Anderson said 
she personally used a VRBO on Big Island for an anniversary and they loved it and that is the 
type of environment short term rental belongs.  Anderson said she is here to present facts.  
Anderson showed the advertisement of what is being offered for the short term rental next to 
her, including “bring your boat”, “excellent street parking”, but noted the basement remodel was 
not a legal bedroom.  Comments included “just enough space for 15 young men."  Anderson 
said her house and this house are on 40 foot lots and she does not want to live next to a resort.  
Anderson showed pictures of overflowing trash, multiple boats, large crowds and said it is all 
currently legal.  Anderson said short term rentals do not belong on 40 ft lots, should have to 
provide off street parking (suggested one car per bedroom), adequate trash, noise, boat and 
waterway rules, and vetting of renters. 
 
Roger Stephanson, 4601 Island View Drive, said his house has a mother in-law apartment 
downstairs and years ago he was told he could not rent it, even though the prior owner did it.  
Stephanson read a prepared statement that was provided for the record, including his negative 
experience with a short term rental in his neighborhood as well as research that supports why 
short term rentals do not work in residential neighborhoods.   Stephanson said the research 
showed short term renters do not provide the same courtesy, the operators are not subject to 
regulation and the safety and quality of life of the permanent residents is impacted.  Stephanson 
called attention to the Mound City Code that defines single family dwelling and allowable uses 
within residential districts, none of which fit short term rentals.   
 
Erin Moss, 3140 Westedge Boulevard, read a prepared letter.  In 2016, she purchased a 
property bought exclusively for short term rental.    Moss has been an enthusiastic resident of 
Mound for 11 years.  Moss focused on the changes over time in Lake Minnetonka, particularly in 
lodging and the evolution of the shared economy.  Moss said the key is effective management 
and enforcement and noted that long term renters and owners can cause the same problems as 
the concerned raised on short term rentals, but the long term renters can be difficult to evict 
whereas short term renters have no rights to stay if they cause problems.   
 
Moss said Wisconsin Governor Walker enacted a state law to make short term rentals legal 
state-wide.   
 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 22, 2018 

 

Lance Bondace, 3828 Nicolette Avenue, said Arizona and Nebraska also made it legal state- 
wide.  Bondace handed out a petition with 174 signatures in support of the activity, most from 
Mound.  Bondace asked how many council members live on the lake.  Wegscheid asked the 
relevance.  Bondance said he wants it to be known if a privileged few are making decisions on 
an activity supported by many per the petition.  Bondance said he is a licensed real estate agent 
and manages 2 rentals in Mound.   
 
Kathy Rothenberger, 3120 Highland Boulevard, said she only recently heard about short term 
rentals after visiting a friend that lives next to one and has many concerns.  Rothenbeger said 
she lives on the lake and is very concerned and does not support this activity.  She wants to 
know who her neighbors are.  Rothenberger requested the Council prohibit the activity. 
 
Patrick Severt, 3140 Westedge Boulevard, said they have been managing their short term rental 
since 2016 said they got a call from the Hennepin County Assessor who said he did not know 
they had direct access to the lake and their property taxes increased over 100%.  Severt said he 
works hard and is concerned his private property rights are being infringed upon by government. 
Severt said he knows his neighbors have rights, too, but they are good vetters with a strong 
contract.  Their agreement says they can kick renters out immediately if the police are called.  
Severt said the 21 complaints revolved around 3 or 4 properties.  Severt said he lives in his 
duplex and is in a rental area on Westedge.  Severt asked the Council to not let the actions of a 
few spoil it for everyone.   
 
Pam Dahm, 5108 Edgewater Drive, said she is against short term rentals and said she lives 4 
houses down from one and described the impacts due to trash and parking.  Dahm said the 
owner lives in Burnsville so there is no supervision and said it is not a good thing for residents to 
have to call the police multiple times.   Dahm said safety is a top concern and that she owns 5 
long term rentals in Mound and there have been no issues.  Dahm said she is fine with long-
term rental regulations, but that short term rentals for fun is a different ball game.   
 
Salazar noted not owner occupied is purely for profit. 
 
Roger Stephanson, 4601 Island View Drive, said there is big money to be made and the owners 
are leaving the management to the police and the city.   
 
Wegscheid said the action is to direct staff to prepare proposed ordinance changes allowing or 
prohibiting short term rentals.  Wegscheid said this is the 6th discussion on the subject so he 
emphasized the council has discerned the topic.  Salazar said so many of the comments point 
out there are no more hotels and he recently became aware of the Hotel Landing in Wayzata.   
 
Bergquist said he represents all of the citizens in Mound that are the silent majority who elected 
him. 
 
MOTION by Salazar to direct Staff to make a resolution for an ordinance to prohibit short term 
rentals.  Seconded by Peterson.  Discussion ensued.  Gillispie pointed out there are a lot of 
people who want this and that except for a few bad actors, this may have not become the issue 
it is and could be regulated to make this manageable.  The following voted in favor:  Wegscheid, 
Salazar, Bergquist, Peterson.  The following voted against:  Gillispie.  The following abstained:  
None.  Motion carried.     
 
10.1  (Added)  Eric Hoversten, City Manager, requesting discussion and action on a 
resolution approving amendment to CBD parking program shared parking agreement, in 
the City of Mound, Minnesota 55364 
 
Hoversten said the current CBD agreement does not address major repairs, only maintenance.  
Hoversten said the Met Council Dakota Trail Intercept Project will fund repair of large sections, 



Mound City Council Minutes – May 22, 2018 

 
but there are remnant areas the private owners want repaired as well.  Hoversten said there are 
three possible outcomes:  (1) single mobilization for the entire area (2)  two mobilizations will be 
required, or (3)  can’t get all owners to agree, so the City won’t manage remnant area repairs. 
 
MOTION by Salazar, seconded by Bergquist, to approve the following resolution.  All voted in 
favor.  Motion carried.   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-50:  RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT TO CBD PARKING 
PROGRAM SHARED PARKING AGREEMENT, IN THE CITY OF MOUND, MINNESOTA 
55364 
  
11.  Information/Miscellaneous 
A. Comments/reports from Council members: 
Hoversten noted the upcoming events: 
1)  Noted laminated flyers across town seeking community member participation for a survey for 
Surfside Park master plan and that over 500 responses have been received since last 
Thursday.  Hoversten said public can find the survey on City of Mound website or by scanning 
the code on the sign. 
2)  Fish Fry June 2nd – tickets available at City Hall, Harbor Wine and Spirits or call the Fire 
Dept.   
3)  City Hall closed Monday for Memorial Day and noted that seasonal hours have begun, which 
are Mon - Thurs 7:30 - 5 and Fridays 7:30 - 11:30. 
 
B. Reports:   
C. Minutes: Parks & Open Spaces Commission: 04-12-18 
   Planning Commission:  03-06-18 
   Planning Commission:  03-20-18 Concurrent Meeting 
 
D. Correspondence: 
  
12. Adjourn 
MOTION made by Peterson, seconded by Gillispie, to adjourn at 9:15 p.m.  All voted in favor.  
Motion carried. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Mayor Mark Wegscheid 
_______________________________ 
Attest: Catherine Pausche, Clerk 


